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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

Wwe have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Tonimy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Satement of profit and
Loss, including the gratement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes 10 Equity and the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes 10 the financial statements, including a sumtiary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, a8 amended (“the Actyinthe
mpanner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the siate of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2019, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the yeat ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial ssatements i accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10Y of the Act. Our responsibilities under those grandards are further described in
the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial giatements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company i accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of [ndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate o provide 8 basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS fipancial stafements.

Other information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s report, put does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the ind AS financial staternents does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial
statements Or OUF knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 0 be materially misstated. 1f, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of the management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for {he matters stated section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Campany
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted India, including the Indian Accounting

Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Srandardg®
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Amendment Rules, 2018. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
a teue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a gaing concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company ot {6 cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseemg the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as & whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errot, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantec that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the override of internal contrel.

«  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

. conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company fo cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, inciuding the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal condrol that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requireinents
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasong
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be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure |7 a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

)

{c)

(d)

(e)

4

(g)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Othey Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Repert are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2018;

On the basis of the writien representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appointed as a director i terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2019;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements — refer note 15 and 35(c) to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

5ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates L.LLP
Chartered Accountants

sz

per Chandra Kumar Rampuria

Partner

Membership Number: 055729

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: 9 ¢} s -7 049
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Annexure 1 referred to in our report to the Members of Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2019, We report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper yecords showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) All property. plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the year

but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reascnable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable

(i)

(iiD)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at the year end and no
material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any toans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
Upor.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the products/ services of the Company.

(2) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax,
cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a slight delay in depositing withholding taxes, professional tax, provident fund and
goods and service tax dues in few cases. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed dues in respect of provident-
fund, income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues which were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,
except for the following!

Statement of arrears of statutory dues outstanding for more than six months:

r Period to

Name of the Nature of Amount which the Date of

Due date
Statute the dues (Rs.) amounts payment

relates

Income Tax Act, Fringe 351,212 October December 15, Unpaid*

1961 Benefit 2008 o 2008 and

Tax March 2009 March 15,

2009

* In view of the stay order issued by the Honourable High court of Gujarat,
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{b) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, duty of custom and value added tax
on account of dispute, are as follows:

Period to
Name of the Nature of Amount which the Forum where the dispute is
statute the dues {Rs.) amounts pending
relates
Income Tax Act, Income 63,808 | AY 2008-09 | Deputy Commissioner of Income
1961 Tax Tax
Income Tax Act, Income 25,480 | AY 2010-11 | Deputy Commissioner of Income
1961 Tax Tax
Income Tax Act, Income 136,980 | AY 2014-15 | Deputy Commissioner of Income
1961 Tax Tax
Customs Act, 1962 Custoimns 107,279,401 ¢ Jan 2013 to Directorate of Revenue
Pty Dec 2017 Intelligence (DRI}
Kamnataka VAT Karnataka 800,239 | FY 2013-14 Karnataka Appeliate Tribunal,
Act, 2003 VAT Bangalore
Karnataka VAT Karnataka 11,494,269 | FY 2015-16 Jaint Commissioner of
Act, 2003 VAT Commercial Taxes, Bangalore

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank. The Company does not have any
borrowing by way of debentures or from government.

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any
money way of initial public offer/ further public offer/ debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting
under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(x)  Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the Ind
AS financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi)
is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. T herefore, the provisions of clause 3(xil) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiit) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the notes to the Ind AS financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The
provisions of section 177 the Act are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xiii) in so far as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given o us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential aflotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause
3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

(xv} According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
inte any non-cash transactions with divectors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of the Act.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 10 1049W/E300004

per Chandra Kumar Rampuria
Partner
Membership Number: 055729

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Dater 3 & Tan e 9
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of
Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2019:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibifities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, ncluding adherence to the Company’s pelicies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and erross, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the *Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with veference to
these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such contrels operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internai financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial
Statements.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financiai
statements in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of the management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, usg
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind
AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internaj financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper managesment override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financiat statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference fo these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019,
based on the internal contro] over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
companents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batlibei & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/ E300004

Y

p%r Chandra Kumar Rampuria
Partner
Membership Number: 055729

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: 2%~ Poan -0 8




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Notes March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment (net) 3 343.24 330.90
Capital work-in-progress 4 1.85 3.79
Intangible assets 5 196.92 22227
Financial assets
Loans [ 134.37 116.89
Other fnancial assets 7 11.24 17:52
Income fax assets (net) 29.19 52.30
Deferred tax assets (net) 21.64 -
Other non-current assets 8 63.14 4323
Total non-current assets 801.59 786.90
Current assets
Inventories 9 1,230.43 998.64
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 1,195.18 989.72
Cash and cash equivalent 11 20.40 9.12
Other bank balances 12 116 1.10
Others financial assets o 32.65 1733
Other current assets 8 303.20 259.57
Total current assets 2,843.02 2,275.48
Total assets 3,644.61 3,062.38
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
LEquity share capital 13 298.95 298.95
Other equity 14 1,156.61 1,083.18
Total equity 1,455.56 1,382.13
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 15 1.60 1.43
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 - 14.23
Total non-current liabilities 1.60 15.66
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 1,242.95 996.00
Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterpriscs . )
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 661.07 544.39
enterprises and small enterprises
Security deposits from customers 19 7.70 2.94
Other financial liabilities 20 69.21 34.66
Provisions 15 27.97 25.56
Current tax liability (net) 22.62 9.25
Other current liabilities 21 155.93 51:79
Total current liabilities 2,187.45 1,664,59
Total liabilities 2,189.08 1,680.25
Total equity and liabilities 3,644.61 3,062.38
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
FFor S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Lj 1'i'1’ d
ICAL Firm Rggistratjon Mumber: 101049W/ E300004 \
7 GENTRy e d
per Chandra Kumg Ramm Shailesh Chaturvedi . Pramod Kumar Gupta
Partner Managi | Director
Membership No.: 055729 DIN: 0302 DIN: 00064041
" Q\r”
Ravi Rao Lipi Jha
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Bangaloge Place: Bangalore

Date: }(éf 3@;7 Date: & 9~ Tum-19




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Notes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million

Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 22 4.205.08 3471.28
Other income 23 9.66 8.79
Finance mcome 24 13.46 9.08
Total income 4,228.20 3,489.15
Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 25 2,271.90 1,720.44
Increase in inventories of traded goods and right of return assets 20 (274.89) (13.81)
Employee benefits expense 27 196.84 225.76
Other expenses 28 1,647.70 1,312.12
Total expenses 3,841.55 3,244.51
Profit before interest, depreciation/ amortisation and taxes (PBIDT) 386.65 244,64
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 141.17 101.34
Finance costs 30 110.08 91.16
Profit before tax 135.40 52.14
Income tax expense
Current tax 16 77.28 33.55
Deferred tax 16 (28.69) (15.69)
Total tax expense 48.59 17.86
Profit for the year 86.81 34.28
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Re-measurement gains/ (loss) of defined benefit plans 16 0.51 (1.54)

Income tax effect on above (0.18) 053
Net other comprehensive income/ (loss) that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss 0.33 (1.01)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve 21.07) -

Income tax effect on above 736 =
Net other comprehensive loss that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss (13.71) =
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (13.38) (L.on)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 73.43 33.27
Earning per equity share [nominal value per share Rs. 10 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 10)] 32

Basic and diluted [in Rs. per share] 2.90 1.28
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Cgiflrayll er: IOI?WI E300004
7 A L7

/

IFor and on behalf of the board of directors of
Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited

per Chandra Kumar Rainpuria
Partner
Membership No.: 055729

Shailesh Chaturvedi
Managing Director
DIN: 00064041

JIN: 0303059
\ » W
. ¢

Ravi Rao Lipi Jha
Chief Financial Officer

Pramod Kimar Gupta
Director

Company Secretary

Place: Bangalofe

Date: 2 /{/ 020{?

Place: Bangalore

Date: 28 = Fun 1§




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

A. Equity share capital

Equity share of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid:

No. of shares Rs. million
As at April 1, 2017 22,923,678 229.24
Issue of equity share capital (refer note 13) 6,970,640 69.71
As at March 31,2018 29,894 318 29895
Issue of equity share capital » -
As at March 31, 2019 29,894,318 298.95
B. Other equity (refer note 14) (Rs. million)
Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income
Securities premium Retained earnings Cash flow hedge Total equity
reserve
Balance as at April 1, 2017 362.73 406.89 - 769.62
Change for the year 280.29 - - 280.29
Profit for the year - 34.28 - 3428
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - (1.0D) - (1.01)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 0643.02 440.16 - 1.083.18
Profit for the year - 86.81 - 86.81
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of fax - 0.33 (13.71) (13.38)
Balance as at March 31,2019 643.02 527.30 (13.71) 1,156.61
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
ICAL Firm RC!,Ibll .lllcn \
per C]‘IAM] Rampfiria Shailesh Chaturvedi . Pramod\Kumar Gupta
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 055729 DIN: 03023079 \ DIN: 00064041
| ‘ Ly
Ravi Rao Lipi Jha
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Bangalor

Date: /[ ; 0?‘0(?

Place: Bangalore

Date: 7. B’- TJun 19




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

Notes March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Operating activities
Profit before tax 135.40 52,14
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 29 113.48 74.12
Amortisation of intangible assets 29 27.69 27.22
Finance income 24 (13.46) (9.08)
Finance costs 93.90 73.11
Net foreign exchange gain (1.26) (0.38)
Fixed assets written off’ 28 5.04 0.04
Net loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 28,23 1.46 (0.88)
Liability no longer required written back 23 - (2.15)
Rent expense (Ind AS adjustiment) 8.46 8.61
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in inventorics (231.79) (13.81)
Increase in loans (26.24) (39.84)
Increase in trade receivables (205.46) (130.40)
Increase other bank balances (0.06) (0.07)
Increase in other financial asscts (9.20) (17.94)
Increase in other assets (112.16) (178.01)
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 119.26 (79.84)
Inerease/ (decrease) in security deposit from customers 4.76 (3.50)
Inerease/ (decrease) in other financial labilities 6.94 (41.18)
Increase in provisions 3.09 14,95
Inerease in other habilities 104.14 12.80
23.99 (254.69)
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (42.39) (42.98)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A) (18.40) (297.67)
Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.14 2.09
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (130.08) (204.97)
Interest received (finance income) 24 5.83 5.43
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (124.71) (197.45)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 246.95 224.83
Proceeds from share issue - 350.00
Interest paid (92.56) (72.92)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 154.39 501.91
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents |[A+B+C] 11,28 6.79
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 11 i ) 2:33
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 11 20.40 9.12
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of (refer note 11):
Balances with bank in current accounts 13.07 8.79
Cash on hand 7.33 0.33
Cash and cash equivalents 20.40 9.12

Notes:
a. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.
b. Additions to property, plant and equipment include movement of capital work-in-progress, capital advances and capital creditors.

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. Corporate information

Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited ("the Company") is a joint venture (JV) between Arvind Fashion
Limited and PVH BV and Tommy Hilfiger Europe BV (till March 28, 2019). The Company has the license to use
Tommy Hilfiger trademarks in connection with the manufacture, import, distribution, promotion, advertising and
sale of products in India. The Company is engaged in marketing and wholesale trading activity of Tommy Hilfiger
brand apparels, accessories and other products in India. Further, the Company has also sublicensed its rights to
third parties for sale of other Tommy Hilfiger licensed products.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had received approval from the Department of Industrial
Policy and Promotion (DIPP) for Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) up to 50% for single brand retail trading of
Tommy Hilfiger branded products. Basis which, the Company has started retail activity of Tommy Hilfiger brand
apparels, accessories and other products in India from August 22, 2016.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS”) as issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule 111, as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain financial assets and liabilities

(including derivative instruments), which are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest millions (INR 000,000),
except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial statements:

i) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

e Lxpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months afler the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:
e It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

ii) Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s at the functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average
rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or on translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income [OCI] or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

iii) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable;
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e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purpose in these financial information is determined on such a basis,
except for leasing transaction that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 and measurement that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

iv) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements,
except for the agency services below, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them
to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in note 33.

a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred
to the customer, i.e., generally on delivery of the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 180 days upon
delivery.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the
sale of goods provide customers with a right of return and discounts. The rights of return and discounts
give rise to variable consideration.

i. Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The
Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned because this method
best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The
requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order
to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For goods
that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue, the Company recognises a refund liability. A right
of return asset (and corresponding adjustment to change in inventory is also recognised for the right to
recover products from a customer.

ii. Discounts

Discounts are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for
the expected future discounts, the Company applies the expected value method. The selected method that
best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds
contained in the contract.




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

b)

_e)

Interest

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating EIR, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

License fee/ Commission

Revenue from license fee and commission is recognized as per contractual terms, on an accrual basis.
Contract balances

i. Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

ii. Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in section (xiv) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

iii. Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return
i. Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be returned by
customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs
to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Company
updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well
as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

ii. Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from
the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the
transaction price) at the end of each reporting period. Refer to above accounting policy on variable
consideration.
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v) Income tax
a) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for {inancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In assessing the probability the Company considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary
differences relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in taxable
amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised before they expire.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in other comprehensive
income or in equity in correlation to the underlying transaction

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

vi) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost includes the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met
and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
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Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes borrowing costs for long term construction projects if the recognition criteria is met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derccognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipments are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

The Company identifies and determines cost of asset significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that
is materially different from that of the remaining life.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates arrived at based
on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified components are depreciated over their useful
lives; the remaining assets are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The Company has used the following
rates to provide depreciation on its tangible fixed assets:

o o Useful lives estimated by Useful life as per Schedule 11
ssets Description : ;
management (in years) (in years)
Plant and equipment 15 15
Computers and servers
-Computers 3 3
-Servers 6 6
Vehicle 4 8
Office equipment 3 5
Furniture and fixtures 8 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the useful life of 8 years or over the period of the lease, whichever
is lower.

Prorated depreciation is provided on all assets purchased or sold during the year.

Where the estimated useful lives are different from lives prescribed under Schedule 11, management has estimated
these useful lives after taking into consideration technical assessment, prior asset usage experience and the risk of
technology obsolescence. The management believes that the estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipments are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

vii) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economjg¢ benefits
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embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

The intangible asset comprising Trademark license fee is amortised over a term of 15 years and software licenses
are amortised over the term of 3 - 5 years.

viii) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Transaction costs are included

in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss using the effective interest
method.

ix) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as lessee:

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or operating lease. Leases where significant portion of
risk and reward of ownership are retained by the Lessor are classified as Operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

x) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of goods is ascertained under actual landed
cost and is determined by specific identification of the individual cost of inventory.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is determines on weighted average cost basis.

Obsolete and defective inventory are duly provided on the basis of management estimates.
xi) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating units (CGU) fair
value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. Ifno
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally covers a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/ forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country
or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, except for previously revalued property, plant and equipment, with the revaluation surplus
taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

xii) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has-a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

xiii) Retirement and other employee benefits

a)  Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme in respect of which
the Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b) Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. The Company contributes to a gratuity fund
maintained by an independent insurance company.

Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
made at the end of each financial year.
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¢)

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

e Net interest expense or income
Leave encashment/ compensated absence

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The Company
presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, as it does not have an unconditional
right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

xiv) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

a)

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting
policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)” on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument
level.
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The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to note 6.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI:
A ‘debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost
or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch”). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Derecognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

e [inancial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

e [.ease receivables under Ind AS 17

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 115/ 1Ind As 18,

e Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

e Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL. is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If; in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted
at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:
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b)

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument;

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables:
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria,
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount;

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance
sheet, i.e. as a liability;

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value,
impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as
‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company prepares financial instruments on
the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed
to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an

effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafis, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement:
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Loans and borrowings:

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer
note 15.
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Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

xv) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

(i) Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or
an unrecognised firm commitment

(ii) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign
currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

(iii) Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship
to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair
value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged
risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows
and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the
financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in
finance costs. Refer note 38 for more details.
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Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss,
such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

xvi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

xvii) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xviii) Measurement of profit before interest, depreciation/ amortization and tax (PBIDT)

As per Ind AS | “Presentation of financial statements”, the Company has elected to present PBIDT as a separate
line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures PBDIT on the basis of profit/loss
from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation/amortisation
expenses, finance costs and tax expenses,

xix) Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-ocecurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed by the management at each balance sheet date.
xx) Segment reporting

Identification of segments

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and
serves different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating
divisions of the Company operate.
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Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

xxi) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption
of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an impact
on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments
that have been issued, but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies
the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.
In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of April 1, 2018. Under this method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of

initial application or only to contracts that are not completed at this date. The Company elected to apply the
standard to all contracts as at April 1, 2018.

The cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 is recognised at the date of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. Therefore, the comparative information was not restated
and continues to be reported under Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The effect of adopting Ind AS 115 as at April 1, 2018 was as follows: (Rs. million)
Assets Reference Increase /
(decrease)
Inventories (a) (35.44)
Right of return assets (a) 35.44
Trade receivables (a) 93.12
Refund liability for expected sales returns (a) (93.12)

Total assets

Total adjustment to equity
Retained earnings (a)
Total equity 5

Set out below, are the amounts by which each financial statement line item is affected as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2019 as a result of the adoption of Ind AS [15. The adoption of Ind AS 115 did not have a material
impact on OCI or the Company’s operating, investing and financing cash flows. The first column shows amounts
prepared under Ind AS 115 and the second column shows what the amounts would have been had Ind AS 115 not
been adopted:

4
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2019: (Rs. million)

Reference Ind AS 115 Previous Increase /

Ind AS (decrease)
Revenue from contracts with customers (b) 4,205.08 4,089.45 115.63
Other income 9.66 9.66 -
Finance income 13.46 13.46 -
Total income 4,228.20 4,112.57 -
Purchase of traded goods 2,2271.90 2,271.90 -
Increase in inventories of traded goods (274.89) (274.89) -
Employee benefits expense 196.84 196.84 -
Other expenses (b) 1,647.70 1,532.07 115.63
Total expenses 3,841.55 3,725.92 115.63
Profit before interest, depreciation/ 386.65 386.65 -

amortisation and taxes (PBIDT)

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019: (Rs. million)

Reference Ind AS 115 Previous Ind Increase /

AS (decrease)

ASSETS

Inventories (a) 1,230.43 1,273.53 (43.10)
Trade receivables (a) 1,200.52 1,097.89 102.63
Other current assets (a) 363.20 320.10 43.10
Total assets 2,794.15 2,691.52 102.63

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES -
Other current liabilities (a) 161.27 58.64 102.63
Total equity and liabilities 161.27 58.64 102.63

The nature of the adjustments as at April 1, 2018 and the reasons for the significant changes in the balance sheet
as at March 31, 2019 and the statement of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 are described below:

(a) Sale of goods with variable consideration

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with a right of return and discount. Before adopting
Ind AS 115, the Company recognised revenue from the sale of goods measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and discount. If revenue could not be reliably measured,
the Company deferred recognition of revenue until the uncertainty was resolved. Under Ind AS 115, rights
of return and discount give rise to variable consideration.

¢ Rights to return

When a contract provides a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period, the Company
previously estimated expected returns using a probability-weighted average amount approach similar to the
expected value method under Ind AS 115. Before the adoption of Ind AS 115, the amount of revenue related
to the expected returns was deferred and recognised in the balance sheet as a reduction from trade receivables
with a corresponding adjustment to cost of material consumed. The initial carrying amount of goods expected
to be returned was included in Inventories.

Under Ind AS 115, the consideration received from the customer is variable because the contract allows the
customer to return the products. The Company used the expected value method to estimate the goods that
will be returned. For goods expected to be returned, the Company presented a refund liability and an asset
for the right to recover products from a customer separately in the balance sheet. Upon adoption of Ind AS
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115, the Company reclassified inventories of Rs. 35.44 mio to right of return assets and trade receivables of
Rs. 93.12 mio to refund liabilities and as at April 1, 2018.

Asat March 31, 2019, Ind AS 115 increased right of return assets and refund liabilities by Rs. 43.10 mio and
Rs. 102.63 mio respectively, and decreased inventories and trade receivables by Rs. 43.10 mio and Rs. 102.63
mio respectively.

(b) Principal versus agent consideration

The Company has certain contracts with Franchisees to sell, on their behalf, Tommy Hilfiger branded
apparels, accessories and other products in India. Before the adoption of Ind AS 115, the Company concluded
that, based on the existence of credit risk and the nature of the consideration in the contract, such Franchisees
had an exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods to the end customers
and accounted for the contracts as a principal. Upon the adoption of Ind AS 115, the Company determined
that the Company controls the goods before they are transferred to the end customers. Hence, the Franchisees
are agents in these contracts as they do not have the ability to direct the use of the goods or obtain benefits
from them. This change did not affect the balance sheet. However, this change will result in increase in
revenue from the sale of goods and increase in other expenses.

For the year ended March 31, 2019, Ind AS 115 increased both revenue from contracts with customers and
other expenses by Rs. 115.63 mio.

xxii) Recent accounting pronouncements

a) Ind AS 116 Leases:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases, Ind AS 116 will replace the
existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i,e., the lessee
and the lessor, Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains
enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS | 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in Ind AS 17,

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard
permits two possible methods of transition:

e  Fullretrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

e  Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

- lts carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

- Anamount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is financial periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 by using the cumulative catch-up transition method and
accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted.

The Company is currently evaluating the requirements of the amendments and has not yet determined the impact
on the financial statements. A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements
will only be possible once the implementation project has been completed.
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b) Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement oceurs during a
reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement oceurs during the annual
reporting period, an entity is required to:

e Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period afier the plan amendment. curtailment or settlement,
using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (assel) reflecting the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan asscts aller that event.

e Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using: the
net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benelits offered under the plan and the plan assets afler that event;
and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability (assct).

The amendments also clarify that an entity [irst determines any past service cost. or a gain or loss on settlement, without
considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in profit or loss.

An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling afier the plan amendment. curtailment or settlement. Any change in
that effect. excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognised in other comprehensive income.

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or afer the beginning of the first annual

reporting period that begins on or afier April 1, 2019, These amendments will apply only to any future plan amendments,
curtailments, or settlements of the Company.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Note 3: Property, plant and equipment (net)

(Rs. million)

Cost Plant and Data processing Office equipment Furniture and Leasehold Vehicles Total
equipment equipment fixture improvements
As at April 1, 2017 0.35 8.94 6.61 4.03 239.51 7.02 267.06
Additions - 4,79 2.98 0.25 181.13 - 189.15
Disposals/ deletions - (1.25) (0.19) - (9.29) (5.10) (15.83)
As at March 31, 2018 0.35 12.48 9.40 4.28 411.35 2.52 440.38
Additions - 6.15 6.73 2,09 117.49 - 132.46
Disposals/ deletions - (0.02) (0.02) (2.21) (19.30) - (21.55)
As at March 31, 2019 0.35 18.61 16.11 4.16 509.54 2.52 551.29
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2017 .06 4.47 2.83 1.26 30.93 4.39 49.94
Depreciation for the year 0.03 3.19 2.83 0.64 66.15 1.28 74.12
Disposals/ deletions - (1.21) (0.19) - (8.08) (5.10) (14.58)
As at March 31, 2018 0.09 6.45 5.47 1.90 95,00 0.57 109.48
Depreciation for the year 0.03 4.27 4.03 0.84 103.41 0.90 113.48
Disposals/ deletions - - (0.02) (1.24) (13.65) - (14.91)
As at March 31, 2019 0.12 10.72 9.48 1.50 184.76 1.47 208.05
Net book value
As at March 31, 2018 0.26 6.03 3.93 2.38 316.35 1.95 330.90
As at March 31, 2019 0.23 71.89 6.63 2.60 324.78 1.05 343.24

Note: Also refer to note 35 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Note 4: Capital work-in-progress (Rs. million)
As at March 31, 2018 3.79
As at March 31, 2019 1.85

Note: Capital work-in-progress mainly comprises of pending capitalization of leasehold improvements for office premises and stores under construction.

Note 5: Intangible assets
(Rs. million)

Cost Trademark Computer Total
license fee Software
As at April 1, 2017 297.55 6.97 304,52
Additions - 0.26 0.26
Disposals/ deletions - - -
As at March 31, 2018 297,58 7.23 304.78
Additions - 2.34 2.34
Disposals/ deletions - - -
As at March 31, 2019 297.55 9.57 307.12
Amortisation
As at April 1, 2017 52.12 3.17 55,29
Amortisation for the year 26.02 1.20 27.22
Disposals/ deletions - - -
As at March 31, 2018 78.14 4.37 82,51
Amortisation for the year 26.02 1.67 27.69
Disposals/ deletions - * -
As at March 31, 2019 104,16 6.04 110.20
Net book value
As at March 31, 2018 219.41 2.86 222.27
As at March 31, 2019 193.39 3.53 196.92
Notes:

On September 7, 2011, the Company has entered into a License Agreement with Tommy Hilfiger Europe BV and obtained an exclusive and assignable license to use the Trademark
Tommy Hilfiger. in connection with the manufacture, import, distribution, promotion, advertising and sale of Tommy Hilfiger products in India for a consideration of Rs. 377.98 million
(USD 7.5 million), which has been capitalised as an intangible asset, in accordance with Ind AS 38, "Intangible Assets". The ownership of aforesaid Trademark rests with Tommy
Hilfiger Europe BV.

Under the aforesaid agreement, the Company must achicve certain minimum sales level with respect to the licensed products and pay royalty on higher of the actual and minimum sales
value of license products. As at March 31, 2019: Rs. 490.39 million (March 31, 2018: Rs. 614.55 million) is the total minimum royalty to be paid under this agreement over the balance
period of the term. The Company is required to spend 1% of net sales on advertising the license products and trademarks on an annual basis. As per the agreements entered by the
Company with sub-franchisees, certain minimum sales level with respect to the licensed products must be achieved by the sub-franchisees and royalty is camed on the higher of the actual
and minimum sales value of the licensed products.

The initial term of license is for a period of 10 years, However, the same can be renewed for a further period of 5 years without any additional consideration, subject to compliance with
certain terms and conditions under the aforesaid agreement. Management has determined that it is virtually certain that the Company would renew the license agreement for a further
period of 5 years. Accordingly, the Company has amortised the trademark over a period of 15 years,
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Note 6: Loans

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits

Note 7: Other financial assets (unsecured, considered good)

Carried at amortised cost:
Other bank balance
Accrued interest on bank deposits
Employee advances
Unbilled revenue
Other receivable from related party (refer note 36)

Non-current

March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018

Rs. million

Note: No other receivables are due from directors of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person,

Carried at fair value through profit or loss:
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts

Note 8: Other assets

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances
Prepaid expenses
Advances to suppliers
Balances with statutory/ government authorities
Right of return assets
Other advances

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Capital advances
Balances with statutory/ government authorities

Provision for doubtful advances

Note 9: Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Traded goods including stock-in-transit of Rs. 74.39 million (March 31, 2018: Rs. 76.44 million)

134.37 116.89
134.37 116.89
Non-current Current
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million
11.24 17.52 - =
- - 0.94 0.87
u & 4.51 3.22
- - 544 4.81
- - 21.76 6.20
11.24 17.52 32.65 17.10
% = - 0.23
11.24 17.52 32.65 17.33
Non-current Current
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million Rs, million
10.44 6.92 - -
25.08 16.46 11.95 11.73
- E 5548 32.73
8.27 7.15 24456 203.76
- = 43.10 -
6.65 - 8.11 11.35
50.44 30.53 363.20 259.57
2.48 248 - &
12.70 12.70 - -
65.62 45.71 363.20 259.57
(2.48) (2.48) = .
63.14 43.23 363.20 259.57
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Rs. million Rs. million
1,230.43 998.64
1,230.43 998.64

Note: During the year ended March 31, 2019: Rs. 48.13 million (March 31, 2018: Rs. 21.08 million) was recognised as an expense for inventories carried at net realisable value.

Note 10: Trade receivables

Trade receivables*
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 36)

*Net of expected discount of Rs, 76 mio (March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil),

Break-up for security details:

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Trade receivables - credit impaired

Notes:

a. No trade or other receivables are due from dircctors or other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person.

b. For related party disclosurcs, refer note 36.

March 31,2019
Rs. million

March 31,2018
Rs. million

1,194.93 98688
0.25 2.84
1,195.18 989.72

March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31,2018
Rs. million

1.195.18 989.72
5.00 5.00
1,200,18 994.72
(5.00) (5.00)
1,195.18 989,72

¢ Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on payment/ eredit tenure of 30 to 180 days (March 31, 2018: 30 10 90 days).
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Note 11: Cash and cash equivalent

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rs, million Rs. million
Balances with bank - current accounts 13.07 8.79
Cash on hand 7.33 0.33
20,40 9.12
Note 12: Other bank balances
Non-current Current
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million
Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months - - 1.16 1.10
Margin money deposit [refer note (a) below) - 6.50 - -
Other deposits [refer note (b) below] 11.24 11.02 - =
11.24 17.52 116 1.10
Amount disclosed under "Other financial assets” (refer note 7) (11.24) (17.52) - -
- - 1.16 1.10
Notes:
a. Deposits are placed as bank guarantee to the sales tax department of various states.
b. Other deposits includes deposits placed as bank guarantee to sales tax department of various states.
Break-up of financial assets carried at amortised cost:
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Loans (note 6) 134.37 11689
Others financial assets (note 7) 43.89 34.62
Trade receivables (note 10) 1,195.18 989.72
Cash and cash equivalents (note 11) 20.40 9.12
Other bank balances (note 12) 116 1.10
1,395.00 1,151.45
Break-up of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss:
Others financial assets (note 7) - 0.23
- 0.23

(This space has been intentionally fefi blank) \




Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 13: Equity share capital
March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

No. of shares Rs. million

No. of shares

Rs. million

Authorised share capital

Lquity shares of Rs.10 each 30,000,000 300.00 30,000,000 300.00
30,000,000 300.00 30,000,000 300.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 29 894318 29895 22,923,678 229.24

Shares issued during the year - - 6,970,640 69.71
29,894,318 298.95 29,894,318 298.95

Shares issued during the previous year (on right basis)

a) On July 12, 2017, the Company had issued 3,448,274 equity shares of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs. 33.50 per share on right basis in the ratio of one share per every
6.65 share held by the existing sharcholders.

*Among the above shares 1,724,137 shares were issued under FDI scheme to the existing non-resident shareholders,

b) On November 20, 2017, the Company had issued 3,522,360 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 46.78 per share to all the existing sharcholders on right basis
in the ratio of one share per every 7.49 share held to the existing sharcholders.

*Among the above shares 1,761,183 shares were issued under FDI scheme to the existing non-resident shareholders.

13.1. Terms/ rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 cach. Each sharcholder is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
sharceholder.

13.2. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
March 31,2019
No. of shares

March 31, 2018
No. of shares Rs. million

Rs. million

At the begimning of the period 29,894,318 298.95 22,923,678 22924
Add: Issue of shares during the year - - 0,970,640 69.71
Qutstanding at the end of the period 29,894,318 298.95 29,894,318 298.95

13.3. Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
March 31, 2019
No. of shares % of sharcholding

March 31, 2018
No. of shares % of sharcholding

Arvind Fashion Limited (Joint venture partner) 14.947,159 50% 14,947,159 50%
PVH BV (Joint venture partner) 14,947,159 50% 12,256,670 A1%
1:;::-](:::)’2;’[1;1(;?3[) Europe BV (Joint venture partner till . 0% 2.690.489 9%
Note 14: Other equity
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Securities premium:
Balance as per last financial statements 643.02 362.73
Changes during the year - 280.29
Balance at the end of the year 643.02 643.02

Note: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Retained earnings:

Balance as per last financial statements 440.16 406.89
Add: Profit for the year 86.81 3428
Less: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of fax 0.33 (1.01)
Balance at the end of the year 527.30 440.16

Items of other comprehensive income:
Balance as per last financial statements - i

Add: Addition for the year (21.07) -
Less: Tax impact on additions 7.36 5
Balance at the end of the year (13.71) -

Note: The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk. For hedging foreign currency risk, the Company uses foreign currency
forward contracts. To the extent these hedges are effective, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amounts
recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Total other equity 1,156.61 1,083.18
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Note 15: Provisions

Non-current

Current

March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 34)
Provision for leave encashment -
Provision for gratuity 1.60
Provision for litigation/ dispute (refer note below) £

Note: Provisions for litigation/ dispute represents provisions made in respect of claims against the Company for ongoing tax disputes.

Movement in provisions for litigation/ dispute

At the beginning of the period

Provision recognised during the year
Amount utilised/ reversed during the year
Balance as at end of the period

- 8.81 831
1.43 1.66 225
- 17.50 15.00
1.60 1.43 27.97 25.56
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rs. million Rs. million

15.00 -
2.50 15.00
17.50 15.00

Note 16: Income tax

A. The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are:

Statement of Profit and Loss
a) Current income tax:
Current income tax charge

b) Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss

¢) OCI section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCIH during the year:
Net loss/ (gain) on re-measurement of defined benefit plans

Net loss on revaluation of cash flow hedge reserve

Income tax charged to OCI

March 31,2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:

Accounting profit before tax
At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.944% (March 31, 2018: 33.063%)

Deductible expenses disallowed in carlier years for tax purpose:
Depreciation (net of books and tax)

Allowance/ (disallowance) u/s 40(a)

Disallowance/ (allowance) u/s 438

Other disallowances

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
Corporate social responsibility
Ind AS adjustment

At the effective income tax rate of 35.89% (March 31, 2018: 34.23%)

C. Deferred tax relates to the following:

Balance Sheet

77.28 33.55

(28.69) (15.69)

48.59 17.86

(0.18) 0.53

7.36 -
7.18 0.53
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million

135.40 52,14

47.31 17.24
(1.95) (0.28)

- 0.10
= (0.39)

2.76 0.89

0.30 031
0.17 (0.01)

48.59 17.86

Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (1.04) (27.59) (26.55) (12.56)
Provision for doubtful debt 1.75 1.73 (0.02) -
Expenditure allowable on payment basis 12.16 11.00 6.02 (5.23)
Revaluation of cash flow hedges 7.61 - (7.601) -
Expenses disallowed w/s 40a 116 0.63 (0.53) 2.10
Deferred tax expense/ (income) (28.69) (15.69)
Net deferred tax asseis/ (liabilities) 21.64 (14.23)

D. Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities), net:

Opening balance as of April |

Tax income/ (expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss
Tax income/ (expense) during the period recognised in OCI

Closing balance as at March 31

March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

(14.23) (30.45)
28.09 15.69
7.18 0.53

21.64 (14.23)
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Financial liabilities

Note 17: Borrowings

Interest rate (%) Maturity March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Short-term borrowings (secured)
Working capital demand loans Refer note below 30 to 180 days 72492 880.00
Cash credits Refer note below Repayable on 518.03 116.00
demand
1,242.95 996.00

Notes:
a. Working capital demand loans availed by the Company are sub-limit of cash credits, which carries interest rate of 8.40% to 8.80% (March 31, 2018: 7.90% to 8.50%). The loans
generally have a tenure of 30 days to 180 days (March 31, 2018: 45 days) from the date of availment,

b. Cash credits are Indian Rupee loans from banks, which carries interest rate of 9.00% to 9.05% (March 31, 2018: 8.90% to 9.05%). The loans are repayable on demand along with
interest outstanding.

¢. Refer note 41(¢) for liquidity risk.

Note 18: Trade payables

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Trade payables 566.53 462.39
Trade payables to related parties (refer note 36) 94.54 82.00
661.07 544.39

Notes:
a. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 45 days term (March 31, 2018: 45 days term),
b. For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 36.

¢. The disclosures with regard to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act is based on the information collected by the management based on enquires made with the
creditors which have been relied upon by the auditors. As at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 there were no parties registered under the said Act.

Note 19: Security deposits from customers

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Security deposits from customers 71.70 2.94
7.70 2.94
Note 20: Other financial liabilities
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Carried at amortised cost:
Payable for capital supplies/ services 11.10 5.40
Payable to employces 33.77 26.83
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2.57 243
47.44 34.66
Carried at fair value through OCI
Cash fMow hedge
Foreign exchange forward contracts 21.77 -
69,21 34.606

Note: Financial liabilities at fair value through OCI reflect the change in fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable
future purchases in USD.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Break-up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost:

Borrowings (note 17)

Trade payables (note 18)

Security deposits from customers (note 19)
Other financial liabilities (note 20)

Brealk-up of financial liabilities carried at fair value through OCI:

Other financial habilities (note 20)

Note 21: Other current liabilities

Advances [rom customers
Statutory dues (refer note below)
Refund liability for expected sales return

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
1,242.95 996.00
661.07 54439
7.70 2.94
47.44 34.66
1,959.16 1,577.99
21.77 -
21.77 -
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
23.58 7.68
29.72 44.11
102.63 -
155,93 51.79

Note: Undisputed statutory dues are settled i next month. Statutory dues include provident fund, professional tax. bonus, withholding taxes, customs duty and goods and

services tax payable.
Note 22: Revenue from contracts with customers

a) Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Sale of traded goods

Sale of services:
Trademark sublicensing fees

Other operating income:
Commission from franchisee

) Contract balances

Trade receivables (refer note 10)

Contract liabilities - Refund liability for expected sales return (refer note 21)
Note: Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terims of 30 to 180 days.

¢) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustments:

Expected sales return

Expected discount
Revenue from contract with customers

d) Performance obligations

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
3,991.63 3.304.23
213.02 166.58
0.43 0.47
4,205.08 3,471.28
March 31, 2019
Rs. million
1,195.18
102.63

Mareh 31,2019
Rs. million
4,363.96

(91.25)

1) Sale of traded goods: The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 180 days from delivery of goods.

i) Sale of services/ Other operating income: The performance obligation is satisfied as and when the services are rendered and revenue is recognised on acerual basis and

payment 1s generally due within 30 days from raising of invoice.

Note 23: Other income

Liability no longer required written back

Other non-operating income:
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Sale ol scrap
Forex gain

Miscellancous income

Note 24: Finance income

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
- 2.15
- 0.88
0.58 0.36
6.39 5
2.69 5.40
9.66 8.79

March 31,2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

0.92 0.79

4.95 -

739 8.29
13.46 9.08
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Note 25: Purchases of traded goods

Purchases of traded goods

Note 26: Increase in inventories of traded goods and right of return asscis

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
Increase in inventories (a)

Right of return assets at the beginning of the year
Less: Right of return assets at the end of the year

Increase in right of return assets (b)

Increase in inventories of traded goods and right of return assets (a + b)

Note 27: Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense

Staff welfare expense

Note 28: Other expenses

Packing material consumed
Power and fuel
Rent (refer note 35)
Repairs and maintenance
-Building
-Plant and machimery
-Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional charges
Payments to auditors (refer below for details)
Communication expenses
Freight
Royalty expenses
Advertisement and sales promotion expenses
Selling expenses
Fixed assets written off’
Warchousing charges
Loss on sale of assets
Foreign exchange {luctuations, net

Loss on financial instruments reclassified from OCI (refer note 20)

Outsourced services

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) [refer note 31]

Miscellancous expenses

Payment to auditors:

Statutory audit fees

Tax audit fees

Other services (certification fees)
Reimbursement of expenses

Note 29: Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets (refer note 3)
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 5)

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
2,271.90 1.720.44
2,271.90 1,720.44
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
998.64 984 83
1,230.43 998.64
(231.79) (13.81)
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Rs. million

Rs. million

43.10 -
(43.10) “
(274.89) (13.81)
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Rs. million Rs. million
156.18 190.83
773 6.39
2.58 2.15
30.35 26.39
196.84 225.76

March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

57.09 35.88
19.85 19.64
259.22 245.35
104.42 83.54
6.00 5.80
0.58 1.27
6.06 541
325 23.92
70.60 61.18
53.99 51.98
4.26 3.78
13.80 12.96
57.28 39.35
307.75 24575
128.62 125.07
141.02 15.67
5.04 0.04
69.12 52.19
1.46 -

- 6.40
0.70 -
314.36 249 85

1.62 239
21.61 24.70
1,647.70 1,312.12
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Rs. million

Rs. million

3.58 3.20

0.44 0.40

0.10 0.05

0.14 013

4.26 3.78

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million

113.48 74.12

27.69 27.22

141.17 101,34
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Note 30: Finance costs

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. n Rs. million
Interest on borrowings 72.04
Interest on Income tax 107
Bank charges 18.05
110.08 91.16
Note 31: Disclosure in respect of CSR expenditure u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thercon:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.62 2.39
b) Amount spend during the year (in cash)
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset = -
i1) on purposes other than (i) above 1.62 2.39

¢) Amount unspent during the year - .

Note 32: Ear

ings per share
v

Weighted average number of shares used in caleulating basic and diluted eaming per share is 29.894 318 (March 31, 2018: 26,682.167)

Note 33: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets, liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could vesult in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Lmpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The value in use calculation is based on DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities
that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive
to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to
intangibles with definite useful lives recognised by the Company.

Defined benefits plans (gratuity benefits)

T'he cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due
to the complexities involved m the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions arc
reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans, the management considers the interest rates of government
bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 34,

Provision on inventory

The provision on inventory is based on policy, past experience, current trend and future expectations of these materials depending on the category of goods.

Provision on receivables

The Company has defined policy for provision of receivables which is based on ageing of receivables. The Company reviews the policy at regular intervals to ensure the
applicability of the same in the changing scenario.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

a) Determi

ing method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint
Certain contracts for the sale of goods include a right of return and discounts that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration. the Company is

required o use either the expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled.

The Company determined that the expected value method is the appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration for the sale of goods with rights of return,
given the large number of customer contracts that have similar character
determined that using expected value method is appropriate.

tics. [n estimating the variable consideration for the sale of goods with discounts, the Company

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the amount of variable consideration is constrained. The
Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In
addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

b) Estimating variable consideration for returns and discounts

The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of goods with rights of return and discounts.

ages are applied to determine the expected value of the variable consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to histori
18»‘ ccted return percentages estimated by the Company.
[4]
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The Company applied a statistical model for estimating expected discounts, The model uses the historical purchasing patterns and discounts entitlement of customers to determine
the expected discount percentages and the expected value of the variable consideration

Note 34: Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of § years are eligible for

gratuity, The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for
the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India.

The Company contributes to the fund based on the latest actuarial valuation report. The Company has contributed to the Insurer Managed Fund (managed by Life Insurance
Corporation of India), details of which is available in the table of investment pattern of plan assets. Hence, the Company is not exposed to any market risk.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recognised m the balance
sheet for the respective plans:

Funded defined benefit plan

a. Net benefit expense recognised through Statement of Profit and Loss:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs, million Rs. million

Amounts recognised in Kmployee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of gratuity:
Current service cost 2.39 2,10
Interest cost on benefit obligations (net) 0.19 0.05
Net gratuity cost 2.58 2.15
b. Changes in the present value of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) and fair value of plan assets:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Changes in present value of the obligation:

Rs. million

Rs. million

Opening DBO 14.50 10.73
Current service cost 2.39 2.10
Interest on DBOs 1.09 0.76
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in OCI (0.51) 1.48
Benefits paid (0.97) (0.57)
Closing DBO 16.50 14.50
¢. Change in fair value of plan assets:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Change in fair value of plan assets:

Rs. million

Rs. million

Opening fair value of the plan assets 10.82 9.25
Contributions by the employer 2.49 1.50
Interest on plan assets 0.90 0.71
Actuarial gain recognised in OCI - (0.07)
Benefits paid (0.97) (0.57)
Closing fair value of the plan assets 13.24 10.82
d. Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs, million

Present value of the DBO at the end of the year: 16,50 14.50
Fair value of plan assets (13.24) (10.82)
Net liability 3.26 3.68
¢, Net liability is bifurcated as follows:
Current 1.66 225
Non-current 1.60 1.43

3.26 3.68

f. The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity (funded) DBOs for the Company are shown below:

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

7.75%
10.00%

7.31%
12.00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority. promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the

employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing as on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is expected
to be settled
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g. A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2019 is as follows:
March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

Sensitivity level:
Discount rate
Impact on DBO

% increase 1% decrease 1% increase

(1.48) 1.72

Salary escalation rate 1% increase
Impact on DBO 1.04

1% decrcase 1% increase
(0.95) 0.53

Employees turnover
Impact on DBO

1% increase 1% deerease 1% increase

(0.14) 0.15

(0.75)

(0.14)

1% decrease
0.83

1% decrease
(0.51)

1% decrease
0.15

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on DBO as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions

ocecurring at the end of the reporting period.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous period.

h. The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Rs. million Rs. million
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1.65 2.25
From 2 to 5 years 3.60 7.29
Beyond § years 3851 16.11
Total expected payments 43.76 25.65

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 12.73 years (March 31, 2018: 5.29 years).

i. Defined benefit and contribution plans:
Amount recognised as an expense and included in note 27 as "Contribution to provident and other funds”:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Contribution to government provident fund 7.73 6.39
7.73 6.39

Note 35: Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments as lessee

Rent expenses include lease rental payments towards warehouse and stores. Such leases are generally for a period of | 1o 9 years with options of renewal against

increased rent and premature termination of agreement through notice period of | to 3 months. The particulars of these leases are as below:

Lease expenses debited to the statement of profit and loss is Rs. 259.22 million (March 31, 2018: Rs. 245.35 million).

Lease expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Mareh 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

Minimum lease payments 241.95 229.54
Contingent rent*® 17.27 15.81
259.22 245.35

* The contingent rent varies basis the net sales value (NSV).

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

Within one year

226.74 220.33

After one year but not more than five years 591.37 519.46
More than five years 134.33 64.46
952.44 804.25

The initial non-cancellable period of the lease agreement is up to | year, beyond which there is an option for the lessee to continue the lease, which the Company
expects to continue for a period after the initial non-cancellable period, accordingly the total tenure of the leases has been considered as non-cancellable for the

purpose of above disclosure.

b. Capital and other commitments
March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuted on capital account 9.11
and not provided for (net of advances):

9.88
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¢, Contingent liabilities not provided for

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as liability:
Litigation - direct tax matters [refer note (a) below] 023 0.23
Litigation - indirect tax matters [refer note (b) below] 16.40 11.49
Matters relating to customs duty under dispute [refer note (¢) below] 92.28 9228
Bank guarantees 8.40 8.50
117.31 112.50

The contingent liabilities, it materialised, shall entirely be borne by the Company, as there is no likely reimbursement from any other party.

a) Direct tax matters represents income tax demands for which the Company is litigating the adjustments made by the Income-tax authorities to the taxable income. The

management is reasonably confident of a favourable outcome. Pending ultimate outcome of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the accompanying financial
statements.

b) Indirect tax matters represents VAT/ CST demands for which the Company is litigating the adjustments made by the VAT/ CST authorities. The management is reasonably
confident of a favourable outcome. Pending ultimate outcome of the matter, no adjustments have been made i the accompanying financial statements.

¢) The Company had received demand cum show cause notice under section 28(4) read with section 124 of the Customs Act, 1962 from the Directorate of Revenue
Intelligence ('DRI'), for short payment of duty due to non-inclusion of certain payments to vendors for determming assessable value for payment of Custom Duty. The
Company 1s confident that it's position will likely be upheld in the appellate process against the above demand. However, the Company had deposited Rs. 12.7 million

under profest in previous year, refer note 8. During the year, the Company has filed a reply to the demand cum show cause notice on August 6, 2018 and attended a
personal hearing with the DRI

d) There are numerous interprefative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019. The Company will make provision, on
receiving further clarity on the subject.

¢) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent
liabilities where applicable, in its financials statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial
results. Refer above note for details on contingent liability,

Note 36: Related party disclosure
a. Name of related parties and nature of relationship:

i. Joint venture partners
Arvind Fashion Limited
PVH B.V.
Tommy Hilfiger Europe B.V. (till March 28, 2019)

ii. Members of the group of the joint venture partners
Arvind Limited
Arvind Internet Limited
Arvind Limited (Telecom Division)
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Aura Securities Private Limited
Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
PVH Hong Kong Sourcing Services Limited
PVH Corp.
PVH Far East Limited
Tommy Hilfiger Asia Limited
Tommy Hilfiger (HK) Limited
Tommy Hilfiger Licensing LLC

iii. CEO & Managing Director
Mr. Shailesh Chaturvedi

b. Disclosure in respect of related party transactions:
Nature of transactions March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rs, million Rs. million
Sales of goods and materials (net of returns)
Aura Securities Private Limited (12.07) (0.70)
Arvind Limited 048 1.01
Arvind Intemmet Limited - (4.97)

Share Capital

Arvind Fashion Limited - 34 85
PVH BV = 28.58
Tommy Hilfiger Europe B.V. - 6.27

Securities Premium

Arvind Fashion Limited 140.15
PVH BV - 114,92
Tommy Hilfiger Europe B.V. - 25.22
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Cross charge of expenses by Company
Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited

March 31, 2019
Rs. million

Mavch 31, 2018
Rs. million

79.75 25.08

Purchase of traded goods

Tommy Hilfiger Europe B.V. 433 4.65

PVH Corp 361 -

PVH Far East Limited 0.06 -

Aura Securities Private Limited - 0.52
Purchase of fixed assets

Arvind Limited (Telecom Division) 2,76 2
Buying office commission

Tommy Hilfiger (HK) Limited 15.03 4397

Tommy Hilfiger Europe B.V. 21.62 2081

Tommy Hilfiger Licensing LLC 0.06 026

PVH Corp 342 217

PVH Hong Kong Sourcing Services Limited 30.73 6.86
Royalty expenses

Tommy Hilfiger Europe B.V. 307.75 24575
Management commission

Aura Securities Private Limited 2.14 9.08
Other expenses

Tommy Hilfiger Europe B.V. 1.36 567

Tommy Hilfiger (HK) Limited 0.30 -

Tommy Hilfiger Asia Limited 7.42 -

Tommy Hilfiger Licensing L1L.C - 0.26

PVH Corp - 0.79

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 0.04 -
Salaries, bonus and contribution to provident fund

Key management personnel 36.73 63.12

)

Nature of transactions
Trade payables

. Outstanding balances payable/ receivable from related parties

March 31, 2019
Rs. million

March 31, 2018
Rs. million

Tommy Hilfiger Europe B.V. 81.27 69.82

Tommy Hilfiger (HK) Limited 9.10 5.03

Tommy Hilfiger Licensing LL.C 0.26 0.29

Tommy Hilfiger Asia Limited L.15 -

PVH Hong Kong Sourcing Services Limited 2.70 6.860

PVH Far East Limited 0.06 -
Other payables

Aura Securities Private Limited n 2.11

Arvind Limited 0.27 -

Key management personnel 10.90 7.80
Trade receivables

Arvind Limited % 2.84

Arvind Intemet Limited 0.25 -
Other receivables

Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited 21.76 6.20

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and normally interest free except in case of overdue payments and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related
party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts

owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related
party operates.
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Note 37: Segment reporting

Business segments

The Company 15 primarily engaged in a single business segment viz., trading and retailing of readymade garments, accessories and licensing of other Tommy Hilfiger branded products, which is
soverned by similar set of risks and returns. Accordingly, no separate segment disclosures are required.

Geographical segments

The Company's geographical areas of operations comprises of a) India and b) outside India. The operations outside India for the year are not falling within the criteria of reportable segment
hence geographical segment reporting is not applicable for the year

Note 38: Hedging activities and derivatives
Cash Mow hedges

Foreign currency risk
Foreign exchange forward contracts are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of forecast purchases in US dollar. These forecast transactions are highly probable. The foreign
exchange forward contract balances vary with the level of expected foreign currency purchases and changes in foreign exchange forward rates

There is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments as the terms of the foreign exchange forward contracts mateh the terms of the expected highly probable
forecast transactions (i.e., notional amount and expected payment date). The Company has established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relationships as the underlying nisk of the foreign
exchange forward contraets are identical to the hedged risk components. To test the hedge effectiveness, the Company uses the dollar offset method and compares the changes i the fair value
of the hedging instruments against the changes in fair value of the hedged items attnibutable to the hedged r

The hedge mellectiveness can anse from
1) Differences in the timing of the cash flows of the hedged items and the hedging imstruments,
it} Different indexes (and accordingly different curves) linked to the hedged nisk of the hedged items and hedging mstruments,
iii) The counterparties’ credit risk differently impacting the fair value movements of the hedging instruments and hedged items,
iv) Changes to the forecasted amount of cash flows of hedged items and hedging instruments.

The Company is holding the following foreign exchange forward contracts:

(Rs. millions)

Maturity
Less than | T3 3to6 6to9 91012 .
month months months months month Total
At March 31, 2019
Foreign exchange forward contracts (for highly probable
forecast purchases
Notional amount (in INR million) 122.23 16716 548 74 227.76 - 1,065.90
Notional amount (in USD million) 1.75 228 7.63 3.20 - 14.85
Average forward rate (INR/ USD) 69.85 73.48 7197 7118 - 71.78
At March 31, 2018
Foreign exchange forward contracts (for highly probable
forecast purchases)
Notional amount (in INR nutlion) - - - - - -
Notional amount (in USD million) - - 5 s % =
Average forward rate (INR/ USD) - - - - - -
The impact of the hedging instruments on the balance sheet is, as follows:
(Rs. millions)
Notional Carrying amount  Line item in the statement of financial Change in fair value used for measuring
amount position ineffectiveness for the period
At March 31, 2019
Foreign exchange forward contracts (note 20) 1.065.90 21.77 Other current financial hability -
At March 31, 2018
Foreign exchange forward contracts (note 20) - - - J
The impact of hedged item on the balance sheet is as follows:
(Rs. millions)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance in cash flow hedge reserve Balance in cash flow hedge reserve
Change in fair ~ For continuing  For hedge no longer Change in fair For continuing For hedge no
value used for hedges required value used for hedges longer required
measuring measuring
ineffectiveness ineffectiveness
Highly probable forecast purchase & 21.77 - = - =
The effect of the cash flow hedge in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is, s follows:
{Rs. millions)
Total hedging  Ineffectiveness Line item in the Cost of hedging Amount reclassified Line item in the
loss recognised  recognised in  statement of profit recognise in OCI from OCI to profit statement of profit
in OCI1 profit or loss or loss or loss or loss

Year ended March 31, 2019
Highly probable forecast purchases 21.07 - NA

0.70 Other expenses

Year ended March 31, 2018
Highly probable forecast purchases s % . - -

Derivative not designated as hedging instruments
During the previous year, the Company used foreign exchange forward contracts 1o manage some ol its foreign currency transaction exposure. The foreign exchange forward contracts were not
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Note 39: Fair values

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The carrying values of loans and security deposits are considered to be reasonably same as their fair values. These are classified as Level 111 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to
inclusion of unobservable nputs including counterparty credit risk.

Note 40: Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
mput that 1s sigmificant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 11 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2. Valuation techmques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement 1s directly or indirectly observable
Level 3: Valuation techmgues for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recogmsed in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level mput that 1s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy lor assets as at March 31, 2019

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and habilities at March 31, 2019
(Rs. millions)

Carrying amount as at Fair value
March 31, 2019 Level | Level 1T Level 111

F cial assets carried at amortized cost:
Loans (refer note 6) 13437 - - 134.37
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss:
Derivative instruments (refer note 7) - - -
Financinl liabilities carried at fair value through OCI:
Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange forward contracts (refer note 20) 21.77 - 21.77 3

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities at March 31, 2018

(Rs. millions)

Carrying as at Fair value
March 31, 2018 Level T Level 1T Level 111
Financial assets carrvicd at amortized cost:
Loans (refer note 6) 116.89 - - 116.89
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss:
Dervative instruments (refer note 7) 023 - 0.23 =

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through OCI:
Cash flow hedge
Foreign exchange forward contracts (refer note 20) & 2 - ”

The fair values of the Company's security deposits are determined by using Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method using discounting rate that reflects the 1ssuers borrowing rate for the respective
financial assets/ liabilities as at the end of the reporting period

Note 41: Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial labilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose ol these financial liabilities is to support the Company's
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company's activities is exposed to market risk, eredit risk and hquidity nisk. In order to minimize any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, foreign exchange
forward contract, are entered to hedge foreign currency exposures. Denvatives are used exclusively for hedging purpose and not as trading/ speculative struments. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below:

a) Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk that the fair value of future cash Nows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of two types of risk: interest rate
risk and currency risk. Finaneial instruments affected by market nisk include borrowings and denvative financial mstruments. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the
position as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations, provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item 1s the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This 1s based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31,
2019 and March 31, 2018

i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primanily to the Company’s debt obhigations with loating inferest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other vanables held constant, the Company’s
profit before tax 1s alfected through the impact on Noating rate borrowings, as follows:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
0.5% mcrease 0.5% decrease 0.5% decrease

(5.52) 5.52
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ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Nows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the nisk of
changes  foreign exchange rates relates primanly to the Company’s operating activities when revenue or expense is denommated i foreign ct

ency

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging its foreign currency exposure using foreign currency forward contracts. As at March 31, 2019, the Company has hedged 48%
(March 31, 2018: 65%) ol 11s payables in foreign currency.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and Euro, with all other vanables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax 15 due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and habibities. The Company's exposure to foreign curreney changes for all other currencies is not matenial.

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million
Change in USD 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Eftect on profit before tax (0.50) 0.50 (0.44) 0.44
Change m EUR 0.5% ncrease 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
¢t on profit before tax (0.09) 0.09 011) 011

Unhedged foreign currency exposure
I Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding 1o hedge foreign currency payables/ ghly probable forecasted payables

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
USD (in milhon) 14.85 3.55
INR equivalent of above (Rs. million) [at closing exchange rates] 1,029 48 231.03

2. Un-hedged foreign currency exposures as at the Balance Sheet date
March 31, 2019

ch 31,2018

Amount in foreign Amount in INR Amount in foreign Amount in INR
currency (million) {Rs. million) currency (million) (Rs. million)
Trade payables (USD) 1.45 100.23 135 87.96
Trade payables (EUR) 0.23 18.07 028 22.10

b) Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables)

Trade receivables

Customer eredit risk 1s managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit nisk management. Credit It are established for all customer based
on internal rating criteria. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed

Customer credit sk 15 managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quahty of a customer is assessed and
individual credit linuts are defined in accordance waith this assessment. Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. At March 31, 2019, the Company had 21 customers (March
31, 2018 18 customers) that owed the Company more than Rs. 10 million each and accounted for approximately 93% (March 31, 2018: 92'%) of all the receivables outstanding. There were 7
customers (March 31, 2018: 6 customers) with balances greater than Rs. 50 million accounting for just over 67% (March 31, 2018: 62%) of the total amounts receivable.

An impairment analysis 1s performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and
assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data. The maximum exposure to credif risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets disclosed in note 10. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its
customers are located in different geographical regions and operate in largely independent markets

¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligation without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is 1o, at
all times maintain optimum level of hquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements.

The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds. The Company’s objective i1s to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and Rexibihity through the use of bank overdrafts/ bank
loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded 1t to be moderate. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding
and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The table below summanzes the maturity profile of the Company's financial habilities based on contractual undiscounted payments

As at March 31, 2019

Less than 1 year 1 year to 5 years More than § years Total
Borrowings (note 17) 1,242,95 - - 1,242.95
‘I'tade payables (note 18) 661.07 - - 661.07
Security deposits from customers (note 19) 7.70 - 7.70
Other Minancial liabilities (note 20) 69.21 - - 69.21

As at March 31, 2018

Less than | year 1 year to S years Maore than 5 years Total
Borrowings (note 17) 996 00 - 996.00
Trade payables (note 18) 544 39 - 544 39
Secunty deposits [rom customers (note 19) 2.94 = e 2.94

Other financial liabihties (note 20) 3466 - - 34.66
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Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economie features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions, Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s
performance to developments allecting a particular industry

The Company 15 a leading apparels brand n the country

Note 42: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The pri
objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise sharcholder
vilue

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintamn or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or 1ssue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by
total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and short-term deposits (including other bank balance).

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs. million Rs. million

Borrowings (note 17) 1,242 95 996.00
Less: Cash and cash equivalent (note 11) (20.40) {9.12)
Less: Other current bank balances (note 12) (1.16) (1.10)
Net debt 1,221.39 985.78
Equity share capital (note 13} 298.95 298.95
Other equity (note 14) 1,156.61 1,083.18
Total capital 1,455.56 1,382.13
Capital and net debt 2,676.95 2,367.91
Gearing ratio 46% 42%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the borrowings that define
capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants off
any borrowing in the current perod

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

Note 43: Transfer pricing

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has entered into certain transactions with its related parties as defined under section 922BA of Income Tax Act, 1961 ("the Act"). The
Company, as required under the Act, is in the process of getting the transfer pricing evaluation conducted for International and Specified Domestic Transactions undertaken during the year. The
Company 1s confident that the International and Specified Domestic Transactions with associated/ related enlerprises are at arm's length, and accordingly does not expect any material financial
adjustment on completion of the transfer pricing evaluation

As per our report of even date
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DIRECTORS REPORT

To,
The Members

Your Directors are pleased to present the Sixteenth Directors Report of the Company together with the
audited accounts for the financial year ended 31** March 2019. The summarized financial results for the
year ended 31* March 2019 are as under.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the period ended ;‘;; %'z,fzzr;%a; ;nded
Particulars 31° March 2019 :
(Amount in rupees Million) (e I rupees
Million)
Sales & Services 4,205.08 3,471.28
Other Income 23.12 17.87
Total Incame 4,228.20 3,489.15
Profit before interest, tax,

depreciation and amortization 386.65 244,64
Interest & Bank charges 110.08 91.16
Profit before depreciation 276.57 153.48
Depreciation 141.17 101.34
Profit/(Loss) before tax 135.40 52.14
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (20.56) (1.54)
Profit/(Loss) after OCI 114.84 50.60
Tax .41 17:33
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 73.43 33.27

2, DIVIDEND

In context of Company’s business plans and due to conservation of profits, the Board of Directors thought

it prudent to skip recommendation any payment of dividend for the financial year under review.

3. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The Provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend

declared and paid last year.

4.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Your Company has completed another impressive year of performance showing continued growth in sales
in the financial year under review. The Company has posted a sales turnover of Rs. 4205.08 Million
during the year under review against the previous year figure of Rs. 3471.28 Million. Th erating profit
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before interest, tax, depreciation & amortization stands at Rs. 386.65 Million during the period under
review against the previous year figure of Rs. 244.64 Million.

The brand Tommy Hilfiger showed an impressive growth in the financial year both in retail sales and
wholesale sales continuing to establish its strength in the Indian market. The Company is planning to
continue its efforts to grow the business rapidly in the coming financial year.

Your directors are continuously looking for avenues for future growth of the Company.
5. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between
the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relate on the date of this report.

6. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
OUTGO:

The provisions of Section 134(m) of Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to our Company.

Zi STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, the Board has taken adequate steps to mitigate the risk foreseen by the
Company.

8. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company has developed and implemented the following Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives
during the year under review.

SR. | Particulars of Programs & Projects Sector in which the | Modalities of Execution
NO. project/program
covered
1. Promoting education & employment | Education and Women | Directly by THAF/through any
especially Girl child Education, | empowerment registered trust, society,
empowering women Company registered under
2 Conservation of Natural resources | Environment section 8 of Companies Act,
and related activities Sustainability 2013.
3. Eradicating hunger, poverty and | Health care
malnutrition.  Preventive  Health
Care and Sanitation Initiatives
4. Rural development projects Rural development

The Annual Report on Company’s CSR activities is furnished in Annexure 1 and attached to this report.

The CSR committee of the Company met twice on 26" July 2018 and 29" March 2019.
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9. PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

10. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is furnished in Annexure 2 and is attached to this report.

11. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR
DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORT

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. The
provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company.

12. COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND
DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are
not applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy relating to
appointment of Directors, payment of managerial remuneration, Director’s qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

13. ANNUAL RETURN

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure 3
and attached to this report.

14. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The Comeany had Five Board Meetings during the financial year under review which was held on 2™ May
2018, 26" July 2018, 26" September 2018, 12" December 2018 and 29" March 2019.

15. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board hereby
submits its responsibility Statement:

1. that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures;

that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgement and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affair of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.
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16. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Joint Venture and Subsidiary. The Associate companies of the Company
are Arvind Fashions Limited and PVH B.V.

17. DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

18. DIRECTOR

During the year under review there was no change in directors

19. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to appointment of Independent
Directors do not apply to our Company.

20. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAlI Firm Regn. No. 101049W) were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years in the Annual General Meeting
held on 30" September 2014. The said term of five (5) Years shall expire on 31** March 2019. Thereafter
the Company shall decide on the appointment of new Statutory Auditor of the Company in ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The Company shall receive a certificate from them to that effect.

21. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meeting of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

22. SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, there is no change in the share capital of the company.
A. lssue of Equity Shares with differential rights - No such issue and accordingly no compliance
B. Issue of Swear Equity Shares - No such issue and accordingly no compliance
C. Issue of Employee Stock options - No such issue and accordingly no compliance
D

Provision of money by Company for purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for
the benefit of employees - Not applicable

23. TRANSFER

During the period under review, Tommy Hilfiger Europe B.V holding 9% shareholding in the Company
transferred its entire holding to its holding Company - PVH B.V (existing Shareholder holding 41%
shareholding in the Company) as on 29" March 2019. Hence with effect from 29" March 2019, PVH BV
shall hold 50% of the total shareholding of the Company.
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